
Growth & Prosperity Scrutiny Panel 
The council is now holding virtual meetings. This plays a part in helping us to maintain 
the safety of the public, staff and councillors.

The City Mayor has asked that, as far as possible, there is still public involvement and 
input into the decision-making process.

If any member of the public wishes to raise a question or comment on any of the items
listed, which will be presented at the meeting on your behalf, you can do so in writing,
by sending an email to the address at the bottom of this agenda. 

Please do this by 4.30pm on the day before the meeting is due to take place.

Further information on the coronavirus and what it means for Salford can be found on 
the council website - https://www.salford.gov.uk/coronavirus

DATE: Monday, 28 September 2020

TIME: 6.00 pm (Briefing for Panel Members to take place at 5.30pm)

VENUE: On-line meeting (MS TEAMS) – access live audio stream via link
below.

AGENDA
LINK TO TEAMS LIVE AUDIO STREAM:
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-
join/19%3ameeting_M2EyMDNkODItNDRjNy00ZTg1LTkyY2EtYTFm
ZGNiYzJhODM0%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%226
8c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-
3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%229d684c1d-4eb2-40d0-
a319-
8a0562477992%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d

1  Apologies for absence. 

2  Declarations of interest. 

3  Emergency Active Travel (EAT) Funds & Mayor's Cycling & 
Walking Challenge Fund (MCF) Scheme Prioritisation and 
Bidding Update. 

(Pages 1 - 8)

ITEM FOR INFORMATION: 

4  Bridgewater Canal, Salford Heritage Lottery Fund End of Project 
Update. 

(Pages 9 - 22)

5  Minutes of proceedings. (Pages 23 - 34)

Public Document Pack

https://www.salford.gov.uk/coronavirus
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_M2EyMDNkODItNDRjNy00ZTg1LTkyY2EtYTFmZGNiYzJhODM0%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%229d684c1d-4eb2-40d0-a319-8a0562477992%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_M2EyMDNkODItNDRjNy00ZTg1LTkyY2EtYTFmZGNiYzJhODM0%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%229d684c1d-4eb2-40d0-a319-8a0562477992%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_M2EyMDNkODItNDRjNy00ZTg1LTkyY2EtYTFmZGNiYzJhODM0%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%229d684c1d-4eb2-40d0-a319-8a0562477992%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_M2EyMDNkODItNDRjNy00ZTg1LTkyY2EtYTFmZGNiYzJhODM0%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%229d684c1d-4eb2-40d0-a319-8a0562477992%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_M2EyMDNkODItNDRjNy00ZTg1LTkyY2EtYTFmZGNiYzJhODM0%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%229d684c1d-4eb2-40d0-a319-8a0562477992%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_M2EyMDNkODItNDRjNy00ZTg1LTkyY2EtYTFmZGNiYzJhODM0%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%229d684c1d-4eb2-40d0-a319-8a0562477992%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_M2EyMDNkODItNDRjNy00ZTg1LTkyY2EtYTFmZGNiYzJhODM0%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%229d684c1d-4eb2-40d0-a319-8a0562477992%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d


6  Work Programme. (Pages 35 - 36)

7  Any other business. 

8  Date and time of next meeting - Monday 26 October 2020, 
6.00pm. 

Contact Officer: Claire Edwards, Democratic Services, 
claire.edwards@salford.gov.uk

Tel No: 0161 793 2602
E-Mail: decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk

mailto:decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk


Part 1 – Open to the Public

___________________________________________________________________

REPORT OF

THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE

TO  

GROWTH AND PROSPERITY SCRUTINY PANEL

ON

28 SEPTEMBER 2020

___________________________________________________________________

 TITLE: Emergency Active Travel (EAT) Funds & Mayor’s Cycling & Walking 
Challenge Fund (MCF) scheme prioritisation and bidding update.

_______________________________________________________________

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the panel;

1. Notes the walking and cycling interventions from EAT & MCF programmes.
2. Notes the progress in delivering these schemes.

___________________________________________________________________

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The Covid-19 pandemic has fundamentally changed the way that people are travelling 
across Greater Manchester. Public transport capacity has been severely reduced and 
walking and cycling trips have significantly increased.  Recent data shows that one 
million cycling trips are now being made each week across Greater Manchester, an 
increase of 34% on pre lockdown levels.

Prior to the lockdown Salford City Council was already working to deliver a 
comprehensive programme of walking and cycling interventions through the Mayors 
Walking and Cycling Challenge Fund (MCF). Recently SCC has secured additional 
Emergency Active Travel (EAT) funding as part of the Covid-19 response to implement 
measures that will support more walking and cycling trips and help to enforce 
appropriate social distancing.  

___________________________________________________________________

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: (Open to the Public)

N/a.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS (NOT OPEN TO THE PUBLIC)

N/a.
___________________________________________________________________

KEY DECISION:  

NO 
___________________________________________________________________

DETAILS: 

1.0 Background

1.1 Salford City Council has received grant funding from MCF and EAT to deliver a 
range of interventions that support walking and cycling trips across the city. The 
report provides an update on these bids and the programme.

2.0 Emergency Active Travel (EAT)

2.1 Salford City Council has secured £1,532,073 of grant from a combination of the 
MCF and tranche 1 of the DfT’s EAT travel grant to implement walking and 
cycling measures. The detail of these funding sources is described below.

MCF EAT 

2.2 GM Mayor Andy Burnham has allocated £0.5 million to each district in Greater 
Manchester to implement measures that facilitate social distancing and 
encourage more walking and cycling trips.  The funding covers a broad range 
of interventions including barrier removal, signage and temporary infrastructure.  
It is for districts to determine how best to utilise this funding to deliver the 
maximum benefits. Officers are working on a delivery programme to fully utilise 
the grant by the end March 2021.

2.3 Salford City Council used the Commonplace online consultation tool to engage 
with residents in June 2020 through the #safestreetssavelives campaign, and 
received approximately 4,500 comments and suggestions for walking and 
cycling interventions.  Officers are currently working through these to determine 
a comprehensive programme of schemes in full consultation with the Lead 
Members and the Walking & Cycling Champion. So far the following 
interventions have been delivered.

 2.0 km of additional walking and cycling routes including Irwell Street, 
Blackfriars Street and Liverpool Street;

Page 2



 Cleared barriers including overgrown vegetation and blockages at 12 locations
across the city; and

 Provided 250 “keep your distance” signs citywide. 

DfT Tranche 1 EAT 

2.4 In addition to the local MCF funding, the DfT has a national EAT programme. 
This programme has been phased into two tranches. Salford City Council 
secured £1.032 million of this tranche 1 funding (34%) of the total award to GM.

2.5 The DfT Tranche 1 funding is only available for specific interventions that 
reallocate road space to walking and cycling such as pop up cycle lanes and 
point closures / modal filters. The DfT also require authorities to deliver the 
interventions by the end of September 2020.

2.6 The tranche 1 schemes were selected as they advanced existing programmes 
of work such as the MCF, for which consultation and engagement with 
residents, stakeholders and members had already been undertaken. This 
allowed interventions such as modal filters to be implemented quickly and 
trialled in advance of the main programme.  A summary of Salford’s confirmed 
DfT tranche 1 schemes and current delivery progress is shown below.

Salford’s DfT Tranche 1 EAT programme

DfT 
Tranche 

Scheme 
Type 

Scheme Name Description Delivery 
Progress 

1 Pop up 
cycle lane 

Blackfriars 
Street 

Blackfriars St become 
amended to one way for 
traffic outbound, between St 
Mary's Parsonage and 
Chapel Street. Enabling the 
inbound lane to be 
established for cycles and 
pedestrians only.

Scheme 
Complete 

1 Bus gate Chapel Street 
East / Victoria 
Bridge Street 

Introduction of a bus gate on 
Chapel Street, after the 
junction with Victoria Bridge 
Street, restricting general 
traffic travelling north east 
bound towards Victoria 
Street. 

Scheme 
completion 
scheduled for 
end of 
September 
2020

1 Pop up 
cycle lane 

Chapel Street 
East 

Introduction of protected cycle 
lanes in both directions along 
Chapel Street in the city 
centre.

Scheme 
completion 
scheduled for 
end of 
September 
2020

Page 3



1 Modal 
Filters / 
Point 
Closures 

Trinity and 
Islington 
Neighbourhoods

Implementation of 7 Modal 
Filters to trial proposals for 
filtered neighbourhoods as 
part of the MCF City Centre 
Bee Network.

Scheme 
Complete 

1 Pop up 
cycle lane 

Oldfield Road 
Corridor 

Introduction of light 
segregation cycle lanes.

Scheme 
complete.

1 Pop up 
cycle lane 

Liverpool Street Provision of light segregation 
cycle route

Scheme 
complete.

2.7 The completed schemes have received a lot of positive feedback from local 
residents and cycling groups and the Trinity &  Islington Filtered Neighbourhood 
has featured in a national campaign for cycling England featuring Chris 
Boardman. However there has also been some concerns raised and given this 
we will be reviewing the implemented measures as part of plans to make the 
schemes permanent.

DfT Tranche 2 EAT 

2.8 The DfT have released further EAT funding in tranche 2 and TfGM coordinated 
a GM bid based around the following themes.

 Access to the Regional Centre 
 Access to Town Centres
 Active neighbourhoods
 Complementary measures (e.g cycle parking)

Salford has made a bid for approximately £0.9 million of funding to deliver the 
following;

 A6 cycle improvements
 Eccles Old Road cycle improvements
 Blackfriars Street cycle improvements 
 Swinton active neighbourhood 

2.9 The DfT announcement on the tranche 2 bid is expected at the end of 
September 2020.  Further updates will be provided as more information is 
available.

Page 4



3.0 Mayors Challenge Fund (MCF)

3.1 Between July 2018 and November 2019, GMCA sequentially approved 
Tranches 1 to 6 of the Mayor’s Cycling and Walking Challenge Fund, granting 
schemes Programme Entry. There are currently no further tranches of MCF 
available to bid to. In total tranches 1-6 comprised 82 cycling and walking 
schemes with a forecast MCF funding requirement of £358.5 million. This is in 
excess of the £160 million allocated so far to the MCF programme.  Following 
the over-programming of the MCF and the creation of an infrastructure pipeline, 
on the 5 May 2020 GMCA approved the first phase of Bee Network delivery, 
based on identified District priorities. This phase has a forecast value of £216.5 
million.  

3.2 Salford is currently developing all schemes awarded Programme Entry to 
business case stage, and will prioritise these for delivery as schemes are 
awarded funding. Trafford Road has recently received full business case 
approval. Full Business case submissions for Swinton Greenway and RHS links 
are currently being assessed and expect to start on site in 2021.  All other 
schemes are progressing through design, consultation and business case 
development.

 Salford: SBNI – A6 Broad Street / B6186 Frederick Road Salford
 Chapel Street East Phase 1: Demonstrator Project
 Swinton Greenway
 Trafford Road  
 Barton Aqueduct
 City Centre Package 
 RHS Links
 Trinity Way/Springfield Lane Crossing
 Monton Town Centre
 Ordsall Filtered Neighbourhood
 Liverpool Street junctions

3.3 The online consultation tool Commonplace is a community engagement 
platform that allows stakeholders to view, and give comments / feedback on 
scheme proposals. Commonplace is being utilised to engage with the public 
and stakeholders across the full MCF programme as appropriate to individual 
project stages.  Schemes currently being consulted on can be view via the link 
below.

https://salford.commonplace.is/

Page 5

https://salford.commonplace.is/


__________________________________________________________________

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

 Salford 2025, a Modern Global City.
 Transport in Salford 2025.

___________________________________________________________________

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 

The schemes will been designed in accordance with highways design standards and 
Disability Discrimination Act (DDA) legislation.
___________________________________________________________________

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  Low – The Highways Design team are experienced in the 
design of schemes of this nature and delivery will be undertaken through Highway 
Services who have a successful track record of delivering schemes. In addition the 
schemes will be entirely funded via external grant funding.
___________________________________________________________________

SOURCE OF FUNDING:   This schemes are to be funded from either MCF or EAT 
grant The City Council will claim any grant funding in arrears on a quarterly basis. 
___________________________________________________________________

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
Legal implications will be reported on as approvals are sought.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Submitted by: 
Financial implications will be reported on as approvals are sought.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: 
Procurement implications will be reported on as approvals are sought.
___________________________________________________________________

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: The schemes will encourage more walking ad 
cycling in line with the council’s climate change aspirations.
___________________________________________________________________

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/a.
___________________________________________________________________

CONTACT OFFICER:    Lee Evans                                 TEL. NO. 0161 793 3801

___________________________________________________________________

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): All
___________________________________________________________________

Page 6



Page 7



P
age 8



1 
 

Part 1 – Open to the Public 

 

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE 

 

TO THE GROWTH & PROSPERITY SCRUTINY PANEL  

28 SEPTEMBER 2020 

FOR INFORMATION 

 
 

TITLE: BRIDGEWATER CANAL, SALFORD HERITAGE LOTTERY FUND END OF 

PROJECT UPDATE 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  

 

1. That the Panel note the contents of this report and the successful outcomes 

achieved in delivering the Bridgewater Canal, Salford project. 

 
 

DETAILS: 

 

1.0 Background 
 

1.1 In January 2014 Salford City Council were successful in obtaining a Heritage 
Lottery Fund (HLF) grant of £3.622m for a scheme of public realm 
improvements along the Bridgewater Canal in Salford along with a programme 
of activities and events to engage people in learning about the canal. The HLF 
monies was to be matched by no more than £1.15m from Salford City Council’s 
capital programme along with Section 106 and other external funding. The total 
value of the project was originally £5.5m but rose to £5.8m due to unforeseen 
circumstances arising in relation to the Worsley Delph project – discussed in 
paragraph 3.4 of this report. The specific aims that the project would be 
monitored against were: 

  

 Capital improvements – upgrading towpaths, repairing historic 
structures, removal of inappropriate vegetation, a new pedestrian swing 
bridge and dredging of Worsley Delph to enable boat access. 

 Improved visitor infrastructure – including a new events space, access 
to toilets, interpretive gym and play equipment, outdoor classroom, 
seating, parking and a coach drop-off. 

 Improved interpretation – signage and wayfinding and interpretation 
about the industrial heritage and biodiversity. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



2 
 

 A programme of volunteering and creation of Friends groups who will 
become custodians to the canal and be involved in the long-term 
maintenance. 

 A programme of engagement and learning to enable people to connect 
with the heritage of the canal. 

 
1.2 These improvements formed part of the wider ‘Bridgewater Canal Regeneration 

Strategy’ adopted by the City Council in 2011. This strategy envisioned the 
transformation of the canal from one in which development had turned its back 
on it, with a large number of vacant / derelict sites, to one in which developments 
and the adjacent communities re-connect to and embrace the canal.  

 
1.3 This report provides an update on progress with development and in delivering 

the Bridgewater Canal, Salford HLF project. A formal independent evaluation 
of the Bridgewater Canal, Salford project is in the process of being undertaken 
currently in line with HLF contractual obligations and this report will be shared 
with the Growth & Prosperity Scrutiny Panel once available. 

 
2.0 Development update 
 
2.1 Since the adoption of the ‘Bridgewater Canal Regeneration Strategy’ in 2011 

over £130m has been invested by the private sector in re-developing vacant, 
derelict and other land adjacent to the canal. This figure excludes the £44m 
investment in RHS Bridgewater which also sits adjacent to the canal and will 
further bolster the attractiveness of the Bridgewater Canal. It also excludes sites 
proposed for development along the Bridgewater Canal within the draft Greater 
Manchester Spatial Framework (GMSF), all of which would take investment 
along the canal corridor to over £200m if approved. 

 
2.2 Re-development of vacant and derelict former industrial sites has had a 

particularly transformative effect on the section of canal from Winton through to 
Barton and anecdotal evidence suggests that these new, attractive 
developments alongside the investment in the public realm has led to a 
significant increase in footfall, which should have knock-on mental and physical 
wellbeing benefits in an area of the city where health indicators are poor. 

 
3.0 Bridgewater Canal HLF construction update 
 
3.1 £3.9m has been invested in public realm improvement works to several sites 

along the canal between 2014 and 2019, including Boothstown towpath, 
Worsley Green, Worsley Delph, Dukes Drive, Hall Bank, Nasmyth’s Steam 
Hammer, Barton towpath and Barton Aqueduct. A summary of the 
improvements is detailed below and a selection of before and after images are 
attached at Annex A:  

 
 Boothstown towpath 
 
3.2 2.3 miles of towpath has been upgraded from Worsley Village through to the 

city border with Wigan. The path has been upgraded to 1.8 metre wide and has 
tar and chip surfacing to facilitate pedestrian, cycle and DDA-friendly access. 

Page 10



3 
 

New wayfinding signage and interpretive seating in the shape of ‘stravationer’ 
boats has also been installed at several locations along the towpath which 
contain historical information and images to provide points of interest to people 
utilising the towpath. A 2-d sculpture of the Duke of Bridgewater, James 
Brindley and John Gilbert has also been installed along this stretch of towpath 
and generates lots of positive publicity.  

 
Worsley Green 

 
3.3 Works on Worsley Green included conservation works to Worsley Green 

Monument and the installation of a knee rail around the Green to protect its 
integrity. An interpretation panel has also been installed detailing the Green’s 
rich industrial history. Works to the monument included removal of vegetation 
within the structure, repair / replacement / re-pointing / cleaning of brickwork 
and stonework and a new and improved drainage system.  

 
Worsley Delph 

 
3.4 Works at Worsley Delph were originally meant to include public and boat access 

at basin level and the scheme was designed on this basis up to the point of 
being ready to go out to tender. However, following further discussions with the 
Coal Authority (whose consent was required for the scheme) regarding the 
mines and the potential for a ‘minewater breach’, this led to a reconsideration 
of the level of risk to the City Council in allowing the public into the Delph at 
basin level and consequently a decision was taken to re-design the scheme. 

 
3.5 The revised scheme for Worsley Delph included construction of a new three-

tiered viewing platform with a range of interpretive historic artefacts such as 
miner’s hats, lamps, a coal cart, pickaxe and a stainless-steel etching of the 
underground mines recessed into the paving. 5,000m3 of silt have been 
dredged to provide open water at the Delph and a number of ‘starvationer’ 
shaped boats are floating just above the water. The island has been re-paved 
and has a modern interpretation of the old quarry crane as its centrepiece. One 
of the old sluice gates has also been restored and feature lighting on the island 
provides a spectacular night-time visual of the Delph. Other areas of the Delph 
that have undergone restoration include the Alphabet Bridge, the Nailmakers 
basin and Worsley Road bridge.   

 
3.6 A number of previously unrecorded or little known about archaeological 

features were discovered during construction, including: 
 

 A previously unrecorded quay and large tunnel underneath the viewing 
platform embankment. This is thought to have been used for transporting 
coal to the adjacent Mill House boiler house. A second tunnel was also 
discovered in the vicinity of the above tunnel though this was blocked off 
and its use remains unclear. 

 A previously unrecorded historic winch thought to date from the mid-19th 
century. This is thought most likely to have been used to hoist goods to 
and from road and canal level for use by other businesses in the vicinity.  

Page 11



4 
 

 A partially submerged boat in the northern basin, thought to be a replica 
from the 1970’s. This was relocated near the island to give it more 
prominence.  

 A boat discovered in the south-western basin which is thought to date 
from c 1940 at the latest. Due to its fragile condition and lack of heritage 
value this has been left in situ buried in the silt. 

 
Dukes Drive 

 
3.7 The city council had already invested a significant amount of money in Dukes 

Drive prior to obtaining HLF funding in upgrading footpaths, installing a 
boardwalk, undertaking tree and invasive species clearance and upgrading the 
car park area. The HLF funding has enabled the city council to provide  coach 
parking and turning area, an outdoor classroom and interpretation across the 
site and all works at this site are complete. 

 
 Hall Bank  
 
3.8 Works at Hall Bank were primarily focused around tidying up the area and 

making it a more attractive section of canal. Works include re-surfacing, re-
instatement and replacement of cobbles along the canal, installation of a new 
rail alongside the towpath, new signage and information and street trees to 
soften the landscape. The area was also a fly-tipping hotspot and so a 
permanent highway barrier has been installed to prevent access under the 
railway. 

 
 Nasmyth’s Steam Hammer 

 
3.9 The Steam Hammer, an original built in 1851, was restored back to its original 

colour of corvette blue / pigeon and a decorative date feature highlighting its 
year of manufacture – AD 1851 – has also been restored. Landscaping works 
and a protective canopy has also been installed to protect it from the worst of 
the elements. Interpretation is engraved onto the canopy and an interpretation 
panel has been installed to enable people to learn about its history and that of 
James Nasmyth. 
 
Barton towpath 

 
3.10 The section of towpath between the A57 and the former Lorenz boatyard has 

been upgraded to 1.8 metre wide and has tar and chip surfacing to facilitate 
pedestrian, cycle and DDA-friendly access. To facilitate the widening of the 
towpath in this area all trees were removed along the towpath and these were 
re-planted in build-outs in the carriageway along with provision of car parking 
spaces. New wayfinding signage and interpretive seating in the shape of 
‘stravationer’ boats has also been installed at several locations along the 
towpath which contain historical information and images to provide points of 
interest to people utilising the towpath. A 2-d sculpture of a ‘navvy’ has also 
been installed along this stretch of towpath. 

 
 

Page 12



5 
 

Barton Aqueduct  
 
3.11 Works to Barton Aqueduct included new DDA-compliant footpaths, re-pointing 

and re-instatement of the paving, a new boardwalk over the wetland, removal 
of vegetation and installation of lighting to highlight James Brindley’s original 
1761 aqueduct, new seating and interpretation panels and an extended viewing 
area over the Manchester Ship Canal. 

  
4.0 Activities programme 
 
4.1 One of the key elements of the Bridgewater Canal, Salford project was a 

significant programme of activities and events to use this one-off opportunity 

provided by the project to transform how local communities engage with the 

canal. This was regarded as crucial to the HLF in knitting together the disparate 

construction sites to provide a coherent package.  

 

4.2 The activities programme was broken down into five main strands, including:  

 

 Interpretation; 

 Volunteering and training; 

 Canal Active; 

 Formal Learning; and 

 Informal Learning 

 

Interpretation 

 

4.3 The Est.1761 brand was established by the project to address a long-standing 

issue of incoherence and confusion across the canal in Salford. The 

development of a coherent marketing plan, brand and design provided a 

foundation from which to create a look and feel for the fixed on-site 

interpretation along the canal.  

 

 Social media – The project set out to build a presence on social media 

to support efforts to attract new audiences to the canal and its stories. Its 

Twitter account (@SalfordCanal) now attracts over 2,690 followers, and 

the project’s Facebook page (www.facebook.com/est1761) has over 

2,280 followers. An Instagram account has also been set up 

(@salfordcanal) and has 722 followers. Feedback from event surveys 

suggest that social media is a key source of information for people 

attending Est.1761 activities and these accounts will continue to be 

updated following the project’s end date by SCC staff. 

 

 Website – The dedicated new Bridgewater Canal in Salford website 

(www.est1761.org) went ‘live’ in March 2016 with information about 

activities and events as well as acting as the main source of information 

Page 13

http://www.facebook.com/est1761
http://www.est1761.org/


6 
 

for those planning to visit the canal in Salford or those interested in its 

rich heritage. In the 4-month period prior to lockdown (1 October 2019 to 

31 January 2020) the website attracted 6,291 unique users and 14,015 

page views. There has been a consistently upward trend in website 

traffic since the launch. The same period in 2018/19 attracted 4,091 

users and 10,900 page views. The most popular pages have been the 

Worsley Delph page as well as the events and timeline pages. There has 

also been strong interest in trails and heritage stories. The website 

attracts an increasingly global audience. 

 

 

  
4.4 The legacy of the project is a range of resources and free downloadable 

materials that will help to sustain interest and engagement with the canal 
beyond the lifetime of the project. These include     

 

 From Canal to Classroom – specially developed online educational 
Bridgewater Canal learning resources (linked to the school curriculum) 
for parents and teachers to download  

 Family learning resources – downloadable activities sheets (including 
how to have a mini beast hunt; make your own starvationer boat, and 
build an inclined plane) 

 I Spy The Bridgewater - a family-focused spotting guide for walking along 
the canal. 

 Knit the Bridgewater – a free to download book of step by step knitting 
patterns inspired by the heritage of the canal (including a tea cosy, hats 
and a cushion). Hard copies of the book are also available to borrow in 
libraries across the city. 

 Soundwaves & Waterways – a series of podcasts developed with local 
volunteers comprising oral histories and soundscapes themed around 
various aspects of the canal’s heritage.   

Profile of website visitors for 1/10/19 – 31/1/20  

(figures in brackets for period 1/10/18 – 31/1/19) 

New visitors  98% (was 95%) 

Returning Visitors  2% (was 5%) 

UK residents  68% (was 78%) 

Residents of other countries (including 

US, 

Argentina, Brazil & Australia)  

32% (was 22%) 

Salford & Manchester residents 21% (was 31%) 

London residents  10% (was 15%) 

Bolton, Liverpool, Wigan residents 5%  (was 8%) 

Desktop users  47% (was 41%) 

Mobile users  44% (was 44%) 

Tablet users  9% (was 14%) 

Most popular page this period http://est1761.org/delph2019 

Page 14

http://est1761.org/delph2019


7 
 

 Who’s that Girl?  - detailed research (developed in collaboration with 
lslington Mill and Salford Makers) in a downloadable document about the 
hidden stories of women in the heritage of the canal. 

 Bridgewater Trails - a collection of downloadable guided walks covering 
various sections of the canal, as well as a free (downloadable) family 
orienteering trail based around Duke’s Drive. 
 

 Volunteering and training 
 
4.5 The Bridgewater Canal volunteers have been the cornerstone of the 

Bridgewater activity plan. They are Bridgewater Canal enthusiasts and have 
helped to shape and deliver significant parts of the activities programme. 
Volunteers have been supported to access a diverse range of heritage and 
environmental activities including research, training, networking and site works. 
As well as many regular clean-up sessions across various parts of the canal 
corridor during the lifetime of the project, Bridgewater Volunteers sessions also 
delivered new seating, new wildflower planting, path and step improvements, a 
new community orchard, two new educational spaces, children’s play features, 
tree planting and improved wildlife habitats     

 
4.6 There has also been strong interest from companies interested in corporate 

volunteering opportunities and a number of these have been facilitated.  
 
4.7 Bridgewater Volunteers worked with designer Tim Denton to develop and 

deliver two Bridgewater Canal/Est1761 showcases at RHS Tatton Flower Show 
(one of the largest visitor events in the North West). Volunteers helped to create 
the garden features, install the planting, show visitors around them and provide 
information on the canal and surrounding area. The Bridgewater Canal exhibit 
won Best Show Feature at the 2017 flower show.    

 
4.8 The Bridgewater Volunteers are continuing to take an increasingly active role 

in developing and delivering heritage-related activities and community events 
and several volunteers have been supported to become accredited Green 
Badge tour guides via the Institute of Tourist Guiding. Seven volunteers 
successfully completed the training and they are currently working as a 
collective, jointly promoting guided tours and walks and supporting the 
developing tourism offer within the Bridgewater Canal area, which will also link 
in to the RHS once that opens in May 2021. 

 

4.9 The Bridgewater volunteers have made a significant contribution to the project 

over the course of the last six and a half years and have dedicated over 11,100 

hours to the activities programme in that time. This equates to around £131,000 

of work undertaken by volunteers to date. The legacy of the project moving 

forward is that there is a core of volunteers on both the environmental and 

health / tour guiding side who can maintain a level of activity and community 

stewardship of the canal one project funding ends. 

 

 

Page 15



8 
 

  Canal Active 
 
4.10 Canal Active has sought to build on the strong local interest in the canal and 

encourage even more local people to explore what it has to offer. The Canal 
Active programme’s aim was to attract the whole community to the canal, to 
enjoy themselves but also deepen their understanding of the Bridgewater story. 
A wide range of events and activities have been held to help to bring new 
audiences to the Bridgewater while enriching the experience of existing 
visitors/users. These events / activities have included canoeing, craft 
workshops, nature walks such as bat walks, heritage orienteering, community 
festivals and the annual Bridgewater Weekenders. Precarious Carnaval, an 
ambitious 3-day promenade performance, took place along the full length of the 
canal over one weekend in July 2019 attracting large audiences and involving 
over 30 local groups and 150 residents in the making and delivery of the 
performance.  

 
4.11 Since the project commenced in 2014 it is estimated that over 36,000 people 

have attended Bridgewater Canal events and activities. Over 17,000 of that total 
figure were children under 16, ensuring that new generations of Salford 
residents have been engaged with the canal and its many stories. 

 
 Formal learning 
 
4.12 Formal Learning has sought to embed the Bridgewater Canal story and 

significance within the learning taking place in local schools. It has provided 

opportunities for learners to visit the canal and learn more about its story and 

develop an appreciation of its significance. Examples of activities delivered 

include learning about the natural history of the canal, craft and orienteering 

activities. Additionally, a number of Bridgewater events and activities are 

centred about British Science Week each year, linking the heritage of the canal 

to learning around topics such as programming and animation. One notable 

project saw 3 local primary schools link up with Manchester Camerata to 

develop 3 mini-operas about the past, present and future of the canal. 

 

4.13 In total, 4,303 people took part in the project’s formal learning programme 

(1,291 adults and 3,012 children). There were 27 individual learning sessions 

with young people’s groups (such as scouts, guides, sea cadets etc) and 133 

learning sessions with local schools. 

 

4.14 To help sustain school involvement beyond the lifetime of the project, two new 

outdoor learning spaces were developed at Duke’s Drive with the support of the 

Bridgewater Volunteers: 

 An informal learning circle with seating on the meadow – this is used for 

school sessions with the Ranger Team, and also by schools and groups 

using the site for their own activities. 

Page 16



9 
 

 A Forest School space was developed within a wooded part of Duke’s 

Drive. This includes space for a fire, seating and for a tarpaulin cover to be 

added. This has been used for school sessions with the Ranger Team, and 

Incredible Edibles Salford use it for sessions with local primary schools. 

Forest Schools are an ideal learning environment for children who struggle 

with more formal schooling. 

 

 Informal learning 
 
4.15 Informal Learning has sought to encourage new audiences to learn about the 

heritage of the Bridgewater Canal in innovative and exciting ways. Groups are 

engaged in the development of activities and a range of methods are used to 

best deliver learning. Hard-to-reach groups have been a particular focus of this 

strand of the activities programme to promote social inclusion and a selection 

of projects and groups targeted is highlighted below: 

 

 The world’s first door-to-door poet, Rowan McCabe, knocked on 

people’s doors asking what is important to them about the Bridgewater 

Canal before compiling poems to read back to people about their 

memories and thoughts about the canal. The project was an innovative 

way to engage with new people; to connect people (who live next to the 

canal) with the waterway in an unexpected way and to give individuals a 

creative experience they wouldn’t ordinarily have.  

 A group of volunteer boat makers were engaged in building a replica 

‘starvationer’ boat over the course of 850 volunteer hours. The project 

was targeted at males who are or were at risk of isolation and the boat 

has been on display at various locations, and is currently moored up with 

Nailmaker’s Basin, adjacent to the Delph. The group continues to meet 

under the auspices of Start in Salford, working with the staff there to 

deliver other woodworking activities.  

 Knitting the Bridgewater engaged women who are or were at risk of 

isolation in getting together to knit larger pieces to display at various 

outlets across the city and has been a huge success. The group still 

meets regularly since the project finished and has been involved in 

subsequent Est.1761 projects (including Precarious Carnaval) as 

opportunities arose and again is another fantastic story of how the 

project has promoted social inclusion. 

 Canal in a Box saw specially developed dementia friendly Bridgewater 

resources being developed to become part of Salford Museum and Art 

Gallery’s highly respected Memories Matter programme. The collection 

of free to loan boxes includes tailored activities (including step by step 

instructions and all the materials needed) for exploring the canal 

creatively. All the activities are also free to download from the Est.1761 

website 

Page 17



10 
 

 

4.16 A total of 3,309 individuals took part in the informal learning activities – 1,621 

adults and 1,688 children. 

 
5.0 Funding 
 
5.1 The total cost of delivering the Bridgewater Canal, Salford HLF project was 

originally forecast to be £5.5m but as stated above the overall cost of the project 
rose to £5.8m due to having to re-design the scheme for Worsley Delph. 
However, in spite of the increase in cost of the overall project, due to the 
success in attracting external and other funding, the overall city council 
contribution required to deliver the project reduced from £1.15m to £842,000. 

 
5.2 A breakdown of funding sources for the project is provided below: 
 

Source Amount 

  

Heritage Lottery Fund (HLF) £3,622,200 

Section 106 from: 

 The Boatyard, Worsley 

 22 – 26 Wellington Road, 
Eccles 

 The former Greater Universal 
Stores (GUS) site, Winton 

 The former Mitchell Shackleton 
site, Eccles 

 The former Green Lane 
Business & Technology Centre 
site, Eccles 

 New Hall Lane, Eccles 

£900,949 

Salford City Council £842,000 

Other grants £336,000 

Peel L&P £100,000 

  

Total £5,801,149 

  

 
5.3 In addition to the above and complementing the Bridgewater Canal 

improvements, a further £913,795 of Section 106 investment is secured in 
Boothstown from the Highclove Lane development to deliver canalside 
improvements, including Bridgewater Park improvements and upgrading the 
footpath on the north of the canal. In-kind contributions from Peel / the 
Bridgewater Canal Company has also totalled in excess of £75,000 and has 
included engineering input and rebuilding a section of the canal wall along 
Barton towpath to facilitate the towpath upgrade. 

 
 
 
 

Page 18



11 
 

6.0 Conclusion 
 
6.1 Over the last ten years the Bridgewater Canal has been transformed by the 

significant investment from the private and public sector in revitalising the canal. 
Construction works delivered as part of the Bridgewater Canal HLF project has 
delivered a step change in the environment of the canal end a huge increase in 
patronage as a result of the improvement works. 

 
6.2 A significant programme of engagement and activity has been delivered over 

the last six and a half years that has promoted awareness, interest and 
ownership of the canal. A core of volunteers and materials has been created by 
the project and this will leave a sustainable legacy for the canal once project 
funding ends. 

 

 
CONTACT OFFICERS:  
 
Paul Gill, Senior Development Manager – 0161 793 2207 
Shaun Clydesdale, Bridgewater Co-ordinator – 0161 793 3178 
Kate Charnock, Bridgewater Officer (Learning)  - 0161 793 208 
Kurt Partington, Head of Development – 0161 779 4913 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: 

Not applicable.  

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:  

Not applicable. 

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS:  

Not applicable.  

 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES:  

Barton, Boothstown & Ellenbrook, Eccles, Winton & Worsley 

 

 

 

Page 19



12 
 

Annex A – Images of the works 

Boothstown towpath 

 
 

Worsley Green Monument 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Worsley Delph 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 20



13 
 

Nasmyth’s Steam Hammer 

  

Barton towpath 

  

 

 

Barton Aqueduct Pocket Park 

  

 

 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Growth and Prosperity Scrutiny Panel

Date: 9th March 2020
Meeting commenced: 6.00 p.m.
Meeting ended: 8.00 p.m.

Present: Councillor Sharpe – in the Chair 

Councillors: Critchley, R. Garrido, Hesling, Lewis, Nkurunziza, Ward, Weir and 
Wheeler.

Members of the public: Mr Langton, Mr Farrell.

Officers: Lee Sugden – Chief Executive, Salix Homes 
Sue Sutton – Director of Operations, Salix Homes
Liz Wright - Democratic Services

1. Apologies for absence
Apologies were submitted from Councillor Jolley and from Councillor Kelly, Lead Member for 
Housing & Neighbourhoods.

2. Declarations of interest
Councillor R. Garrido declared an interest in respect of Minute 3 (Salix Homes – Progress 
against the Transfer Offer Document) due to him being a Member of ForViva Board.

3. Salix Homes – Progress against the Transfer Offer Document
Lee Sugden and Sue Sutton gave a presentation (see appendix) to update the members on 
progress and the following issues were highlighted and questions raised:

 The detail of the schedule of achievements against the offer document were included in the 
report that accompanied the presentation.  

 The target for investment in homes had been exceeded.
 The 100% decency target had been reached.

Having reached the decent homes target was there a rolling programme of updating to ensure 
to ensure standards did not slip?
There had to be an ongoing rolling programme of updating kitchens, bathrooms etc to maintain 
100% decency target and also to comply with the regulations.

Had a stock condition survey and survey of the decency level been carried out?
Over 90% of homes had been surveyed to ensure that works that we needed had been done. 
The level of decency was based on the actual condition of homes and not estimated based on 
a sample survey, so the figures were more reliable.

What was the condition of the 8,5000 homes at the time of the transfer?
Before the transfer there was a low level of decency.  It was usual to carry out a sample stock 
survey but considering the condition of homes a 90% survey was carried out to be able to get 
an accurate picture of the condition of the homes.

What was the criteria used for decency?

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



2

The service had to comply with the decent home Government standards (GOV.uk – 
Government decency standard) and the standard that 
Salix Homes adopted was slightly higher than the Government standard.

Was a survey of fencing carried out?
20% of fencing used to be surveyed and then this was extrapolated to estimate how much 
needed to be repaired/replaced.  Following the survey of the actual fencing, there was less 
than predicted that needed updating. £10 million had been made available to invest in fencing, 
paths and general environmental improvements.

What was the state of properties before the transfer?
A rump of properties did not have investment.  The transfer to Salix Homes was to ensure that 
the necessary investments could be made.

Was the £10 million in environmental improvements underspent?
This was probably because not all the improvements planned for were needed. The ultimate 
measure was if the properties were up to the decency standard. 

What was the target for upgrading business units?
Some had been converted into social housing if they were surplus to business requirements.  
Some of these properties had been empty for over 10 years.  Shops that had been at the 
bottom of some high-rise buildings had been converted into flats in some cases. A couple of 
units were still unlet.

 Members requested more information on business/shop units and specifically asked for 
information on the level of demand from small businesses for premises, how they were 
monitored and how many remained unlet.

Had the decent homes standard been reviewed recently?  Are they still adequate and what 
was the view of Salix Homes on the standards?
The view of Salix Homes was that the standards were not very ambitious, and they already 
used a higher standard than required by the Government guidelines.  They would be reviewing 
the Salix Homes standard considering the requirement of buildings in the 2020s and beyond 
(to include changes in safety regulations and climate change factors such as not being able to 
install gas boilers after 2025).

 A member commented that the new development in Langworthy had heat source pumps 
installed in all the properties and this was a very positive development in terms of climate 
change.

What was Salix Homes’ carbon neutral target?
A Carbon Neutral Strategy was being developed and this would include looking at installing 
heat sources pumps in properties when they were being upgraded. Members, however, also 
needed to be aware that Salix Homes and other social landlords with aged properties would 
not have the funding to make all properties carbon neutral.

What is the quality of the work carried out in the homes?
An independent survey was of the stock and had been carried out and the report stated that 
the quality of the work and the fitments was high and as a result would be longer lasting.

Was there a vulnerable persons’ officer?
All neighbourhood officers had been trained in safeguarding and had had mental health first aid 

Page 24

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/7812/138355.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/7812/138355.pdf


3

training. These officers could triage but would then signpost to the vulnerable person to the 
appropriate services.

What support was made available for people who were experiencing difficulties with Universal 
Credit (UC)?
An officer from Salix Homes contacts tenants as soon as they were put onto UC to support 
them with budgeting.  All members of the income management team had also been trained on 
how to deal with UC.

How did people who had English as an Additional Language (EAL) access Salix Homes 
services?
There were officers who spoke a variety of languages and could provide some translation 
support and Salix Homes officers visited each housing block to talk to tenants to identify any 
issues residents were having.

The customer satisfaction rating was at 97%.  What is the rating benchmarked against? 
The 97% satisfaction rating was with improvement work.  The general satisfaction rate was 
around 86% and this had been found via an independent survey.  Other providers used the 
national Star survey. General satisfaction levels had risen but satisfaction with the environment 
had reduced. 

 The members requested a breakdown of the customer satisfaction data.
 A member congratulated Salix Homes on the emergency repairs response and the three-

day response for general repairs.  
 It was confirmed that the anti-social behaviour complaints were usually about noise levels 

and usually low-level noise.  
 It was reported that Ward Councillors received quarterly updates and members requested 

that the updates were made available to all councillors.

What was the link between accommodation and jobs?
Salix Homes had converted one building to accommodate young people (YP) who were 
struggling to find work and the criteria for living there had focused on those YP who were 
vulnerable in terms of housing. Some had gone on to do an apprenticeship with Salix Homes 
and had been able to leave the shared accommodation to move into their own flat.  Salix 
Homes had also converted a property to house key workers for Salford Royal Hosital to 
provide temporary accommodation whilst they found more permanent homes, so enabling 
them to fill key posts.

What support was provided for Looked after Children in the city council’s role as a corporate 
parent?
Information about vacancies were circulated via the LAC organisations but LAC were not 
specifically targeted directly by Salix Homes.

 It was confirmed that Salix Homes housing blocks had their own separate CCTV, but they 
did work in partnership with Salford City Council and the Greater Manchester Police (GMP).  
The cameras were filming 24 hours a day and the cameras were monitored.  The city 
council had an up to date list of where all the cameras were and what areas they covered.

What had been the impact of the customers’ portal?
The portal was relatively new and included a web chat facility.  It was working well but needed 
more customers to sue it.  It was being relaunched and marketed to encourage more 
customers to use it.

Page 25



4

 It was confirmed that fly tippers were prosecuted when caught tipping on Salix Homes’ land.  
Crime scene tape had been used to highlight where fly tipping had taken place and when 
this was implemented the number of incidents in the area were seen to reduce.

 There had been a very high response rate to participate on the Customer Committees.  
 Salix Homes were commended for being the only northern housing organisation that had 

been asked to work with the Government on reviewing safety on high rise blocks.
 A member commented that they had seen some of the improvements themselves and were 

aware of the improvement in customer satisfaction levels.

A safeguard on rent rises was in place (keeping it at Retail Price Index (RPI) +1% over the next 
few years).  What was the impact of this and what would be happening further in the future?
Rent reductions when the homes were initially transferred had a significant impact on the 
organisation as staff number had to be reduced and it created many challenges for the 
procurement team.  The current rate of rents could change if the Government make any 
legislative changes that would directly impact on rents.  When looking at new home rents the 
starting point was whether the rents could be set as social rents or sub-market rents. The Salix 
Homes Board have a very strategy, as a Salford based organisation, of investing back into the 
local communities.  The board was committed to partnership working with organisations such 
as Derive. The safety agenda was having and would continue to have a significant impact. 

What was the position with the supply of available land?
There was no more land available in the Salix Homes portfolio.

 Concern was raised about the impact on local democracy and accountability because Salix 
Homes Trust Board had removed all councillors from the board.  It was confirmed that there 
were two Customer Committee members on the board and whilst there were no seats on 
the board specifically designated for councillors, but councillors were being encouraged to 
apply for positions on the board and this had been raised with the City Mayor.

What was done about employee engagement and were Salix Homes employees paid the 
Living Wage?
An employee survey was regularly carried out and the recent one showed an 80% satisfaction 
rate.  Salix Homes was the first organisation in Salford to become an accredited Living Wage 
Employer.  

What mix of housing did Salix homes have and what was the investment strategy?
The housing strategy provided for a mixed approach.  Some rent to buy subsidies applied and 
depend4ing of the costs involved in a scheme, some schemes included affordable rent 
properties and social housing, where possible. 100 new homes were provided each year, and 
these replaced those lost via rent to buy. The staring point was always to look at applying a 
social rent where at all possible, but each scheme had to be looked at on its won merits.  There 
was a 30-35-year payback timeline for a scheme.

Where did the responsibility for roads and highways lie?
There were ongoing discussions about this between Salix Homes and the city council and it 
was hoped an agreement on funding could be reached and agreed by the organisations bank 
soon.

 Members agreed to request that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee reviewed and 
monitored this.

 Members expressed concern regarding there being no councillors on the Salix Homes 
Board.

Page 26



5

 Members asked that a request be made for further information to be provided regarding 
information on Ward/Groups satisfaction levels and the Salix Homes quarterly updates not 
being sent to all councillors, and that, subject to the information received, their concerns 
regarding communications with Councillors in respect of some of the above issues be 
raised with the Lead Member for Housing & Neighbourhoods.

 The panel thanked Salix Homes for the very detailed presentation and for the work they 
were doing.  

Resolved:  That 

1. the members be provided with more information on business/shop units and specifically 
asked for information on the level of demand from small businesses for premises, how they 
were monitored and how many remained unlet;

2. the members be provided with a breakdown of the customer satisfaction data;
3. the quarterly updates be made available to all councillors
4. subject to the information provided to Members in respect of the above issues, their 

concerns about communications with Councillors be raised with the Lead Member for 
Housing & Neighbourhoods.  

4. Items for Information
4a. Briefing note on Bus Lane Enforcement

Resolved: That the Growth & Prosperity Scrutiny Panel notes the update on Bus Lane 
Enforcement (BLE) across Salford

4b. Development across Salford City Centre

Resolved: That the Panel note the contents of this report and the continued progress made to 
deliver the growth and development strategy for the City.

5. Minutes of the meeting held on 27th January 2020

Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting held on 27th January 2020 be deferred and considered 
at the next meeting.

6. Work Programme
 The Mayor’s Cycling & Walking Challenge Fund Scheme Prioritisation and Bidding Update 

was on the agenda for the next meeting and members requested that the update should 
cover:
o How were the schemes chosen?
o How were the schemes maintained?
o Who were the officers leads for this?
o What cycling proficiency levels do children need to reach to use the cycle lanes and how 

does the council link with schools about this?
o An update on the cycle lanes to include the junction at Blackfriars as there were 

concerns that the lanes were not suitable, vehicles blocking them etc.
 The clerk would pass this request to Shoaib Mohammad (Assistant Director of Technical 

Services) for the next meeting’s agenda. 

Page 27



6

7. Any other business
There were no items of any other business.

Page 28



1

Growth & Prosperity Scrutiny Panel

27th January 2020 

Meeting commenced: 6.00 p.m.
      “ ended: 7.55 p.m.

Present: Councillor Sharpe – in the Chair
Councillors August, Critchley, Dickman, R. Garrido, Hesling, Lewis, Nkurunziza, Ward and 
Weir

Councillor Antrobus – Lead Member for Planning & Sustainable Development

Officers: Paul Hutchings – Strategic Finance Manager
Sarah Ashurst – Group Leader, Investment Team
Bernie Vaudrey – Head of Business Investment & Programmes
Claire Edwards – Democratic Services

Members of the public in attendance:
Graham Langton
Three members of the public observed the meeting

 
1. Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Jolley and Wheeler, and on behalf of 
Councillor Kelly, Lead Member for Housing & Neighbourhoods.

2. Declarations of Interest

Councillor R. Garrido declared an interest in respect of the matters recorded under Minutes 5 (Place 
Services Group Performance Report) and 9 (Pendleton Tower Blocks) due to him being a Board 
Member of ForViva.

3. Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring 2019/20

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director for Place which (a) set out the current 
position of expenditure against the revenue budget, forecasting the year end position and highlighting 
any risks/sensitivities and revenue budget virements proposed, (b) provided an analysis of progress 
made towards agreed CSR savings targets, and (c) provided an update of the capital programme.

Discussion took place which included reference to the following –

- The £0.068m reported adverse variance which related to a £0.100m forecasted overspend on The 
Landing as identified in the Business Plan, which had been offset in part by underspends across the 
wider service group.

- The £0.149m negative variance on property which was due in the main to a forecasted overspend 
on repairs and maintenance of corporate buildings and underachievement of income on Salford 
University Park.  It was indicated that discussions were ongoing to help mitigate some of the issues.

- With regard to Table A: Revenue budget to November 2019, reference was made to the total 
forecast variation of £133,000, which it was hoped would be reduced to zero to achieve a balanced 
position.

Page 29



2

- Bus Lane Enforcement – the Panel asked to be provided with further information regarding the 
current arrangements, future plans and the financial position.

RESOLVED: (1) THAT the content of the report be noted.

(2) THAT Councillor Antrobus arrange for information to be provided to the Panel in
respect of current and future arrangements in relation to Bus Lane Enforcement together with the 
financial position.

 
4. Place Service Group Performance Report 

Sarah Ashurst presented the Place Service Group Performance Report in respect of Quarter 2/Half-
year 2019-20 which provided details of (a) performance highlights in respect of Economic Development, 
Housing and Transport (it was noted that, as at the end of Quarter 2 2019/20, all performance 
measures in the service group were either on target or above target), and (b) management information.

Discussion took place which included reference to the following –

Q - Are there any potential tenants with regard to Embankment?
A - It was looking positive that securing tenants would not be an issue.

Q - How many empty properties have been brought back into use?
A - Currently 123 – the target is 250.

- With regard to Housing Core Performance Indicators, reference was made to the delivery of new 
homes, including 225 affordable homes and 250 empty properties brought back into use and it was 
indicated that those three indicators would be separated out for future reports.

- With regard to the number of households assisted to access energy efficiency measures and 
achieve affordable warmth, it was reported that work was being undertaken with Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority regarding how the required target could be achieved by 2038.

- Park & Ride at Walkden Station – public consultation to start next week.
Reference was made to a funding bid that had been submitted to the Department for Transport’s 
Access for All programme, a pot of funding that was only made available once every five years, to 
provide disable access for the station.  The bid met all the requirements of the fund and had the full 
support of community groups, MPs, the three Ward Councillors, the City Mayor and the Greater 
Manchester Mayor and the Council.  Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM) agreed and identified 
Walkden Station as the top priority in Greater Manchester to receive step free access.  
Unfortunately, the funding application had been rejected without explanation.  

Councillor Antrobus expressed his extreme disappointment with regard to the rejection of the 
funding application and indicated that the Council was continuing to lobby the government in 
respect of this matter.

Panel Members expressed their disappointment and concerns regarding the above situation.

RESOLVED: (1) THAT the content of the report be noted.

(2) THAT a representation be made to Transport for Greater Manchester, on behalf 
of the panel, expressing their disappointment that the funding application had been rejected, outlining 
their concerns that disabled access to the station had been well overdue for some time and supporting 
the representations that had already been submitted requesting that they ask the government to re-
consider this matter.

5. Update Report on Greater Manchester's Clean Air Plan: Tackling Nitrogen Dioxide Exceedances at the 
Roadside

Page 30



3

Councillor Antrobus and Bernie Vaudrey presented a report regarding the above matter that was to be 
considered at a meeting of the Cabinet the following day.  The report set out the progress that had been 
made following the government’s response to Greater Manchester’s Outline Business Case to tackle 
Nitrogen Dioxide Exceedances at the Roadside (OBC), and the implications for the ten Greater 
Manchester local authorities in relation to the schedule of work and statutory consultation on the Clean 
Air Plan.

The report provided information with regard to the following –

- Background

- Introduction

- Progress since last update

- Government Asks
In addition to the response on the specific clean air proposals, additional asks were made of 
Government, as set out in paragraph 3.3 of the report.  These included an ask for Government to 
direct Highways England to tackle NO2 exceedances on the Strategic Road Network (SRN) in the 
same way that local authorities that have been directed to undertake a feasibility study are having to 
take action on the local road network. The ministerial feedback outlined that Highways England are 
working up plans for exceedances identified by national modelling on their network, and that this 
was not expected to include charging on the SRN but would instead focus on a range of measures 
such as traffic management, speed limits and barriers. Officers had been advised that the measures 
proposed by Highways England in GM focused on introducing 60mph speed limits on parts of the 
SRN. It highlighted the concern that Highways England had not been directed to act in relation to 
tackling NO2 exceedances in the same way as GM local authorities, and that this would leave some 
publicly accessible areas of GM adjacent to trunk roads managed by Highways England, with NO2 
exceedances that are not being addressed by the Highways England plan.

- Vehicle Idling
Greater Manchester needed to secure the required level of Government funding to implement the 
Clean Vehicle scheme (which included a Bus Fund) – then Bus emissions and NO2 would be 
significantly impacted as a result of bus fleet renewal and retrofit.  In addition, Greater Manchester 
was pressing government on the rules around vehicle idling.   

- Next Steps

- Recommendations to Cabinet:
a) Note the progress made to date;
b) Note the Ministerial Direction under the Environment Act 1995 (Greater Manchester) Air Quality 

Direction 2019 which requires all ten Greater Manchester (GM) local authorities to implement a 
charging Clean Air Zone Class C across the region;

c) Agree the need to continue to proceed towards developing the implementation and contract 
arrangements of a charging Clean Air Zone in GM, utilising the initial tranche of £36m of funding 
as required by the Ministerial Direction / feedback;

d) Delegate authority to the Strategic Director Place to determine the preparatory implementation 
and contract arrangements that need to be undertaken utilising the initial tranche of £36m of 
funding to deliver the CAZ and other GM CAP measures, as set out at paragraph 4.11; 

e) Note that the report to determine the timings for commencing the consultation will be received in 
the Spring of 2020;

f) Note the outstanding need to secure a clear response from Government on the clean vehicles 
funding asks;

g) Note that Highways England have not been directed to act in relation to tackling NO2 
exceedances in the same way as the GM local authorities, and that this will leave some publicly 
accessible areas of GM adjacent to trunk roads managed by Highways England, with NO2 
exceedances that are not being addressed by the Highways England plan; 

Page 31



4

h) Delegate authority to the Strategic Director Place to agree the final content and submission of 
the documents listed in Appendix One for formal submission to JAQU and note their Publication 
status;

i) Delegate authority to the Strategic Director Place to determine any further technical reports for 
formal submission to JAQU; and

j) Note that Salford City Mayor will co-sign a letter from the GM Authorities to the Transport 
Secretary asking Government to bring forward the launch of a statutory consultation to 
strengthen rules on vehicle idling.

Discussion took place which included reference to the following –

- Support for Greater Manchester continuing to put pressure on Government in respect of instructing 
Highways England to take action on the Strategic Road Network.

- The need to understand the risks/implications to Greater Manchester, and Salford, (in terms of 
risks/implications to the Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan/residents) of Highways England not 
being directed to act in the same way as the Greater Manchester authorities.  

- Whether a risk assessment had been undertaken in relation to the impact (on residents, stakeholder 
groups, etc.) of the delays that had arisen due to the need to seek further clarification from 
Government and JAQU, which had resulted in the GM authorities not having been in a position to 
submit their full business case by the required date.

- What further action could be taken to address the issue of bus idling/emissions.

RESOLVED: THAT the panel’s comments be noted and taken into account during future 
consideration of the matter.

6. Item for Information – Summary Update on Development across Salford Quays

RESOLVED: THAT the content of the summary update be noted.

7. Minutes of meeting held on 28th October 2019

The minutes of the above meeting were agreed as a correct record.

8. Work Programme

The content of the Work Programme was noted.

9. Pendleton Tower Blocks

Councillor R. Garrido informed the Panel that Mr. Langton had raised the following matter with him prior 
to the meeting, in respect of which he had obtained a response from Ben Dolan, Strategic Director for 
Place, which is included below:

 Why had residents been sent maintenance bills, requesting bank details, for heating appliances
installed in their homes?  This was causing great distress to residents.  The same thing had 
happened the previous year and, following complaints from residents, Pendleton Together had 
indicated that the letters had been sent in error.

Pendleton Together were aware that letters had gone out to all residents from NIBE, the 
manufacturer of the exhaust air heating units.  NIBE must have the Pendleton properties on a 
database and are using this to sell their maintenance and warranty services.  Pendleton Together, 
who are responsible for the ongoing maintenance and servicing of tenants heating systems have 
contacted NIBE to try and stop them sending out the letters and will be putting out further 
information for tenants regarding this matter in the next resident newsletter.

Page 32



5

Concern was expressed that some elderly and vulnerable residents may believe that they are 
required to submit their bank details.  It was suggested that a more urgent response was required 
from Pendleton Together and it was recommended that contact should be made with all residents 
explaining the purpose of the correspondence from NIBE and advising them that they are not 
required to submit their bank details.

Councillor R. Garrido reported that he had raised the following matter with Ben Dolan prior to the meeting, 
in respect of which he had received the response included below:

 Why had the shattered glass panel that had been raised with the City Mayor in May 2019 still not 
been replaced?

The two shattered balconies had been investigated and traced to vandalism.  All balconies were to 
be subject to further inspection as part of the works to replace the cladding system.  Pendleton 
Together had ordered the replacement glass which had taken some time due to difficulty in gaining 
access to the properties.  The tenants had been contacted with regard to their availability for the 
glass to be fitted and had been advised of a 3 week lead in time for the specialist glass to be 
manufactured/cut. 

Concern was expressed regarding the delay that had taken place in addressing the above issue.

Mr. Langton enquired as to whether a plan of the works that were to be undertaken to the tower blocks 
would be available to residents.  He made reference to work that was currently taking place inside Malus 
Court and Plane Court, which involved hatches being cut out of the ceilings, and expressed concern that 
residents had not been made aware that this work was to be undertaken or of the purpose of the works.

Councillor R. Garrido referred to the need to seek assurance from Pendleton Together that all properties 
were to be inspected.  He also made reference to the need to clarify whether issues that were identified 
during inspection related to snagging issues (i.e. faults that were present upon completion of the 
refurbishment works) or repairs.

Members expressed concern with regard to the issues that were being raised by Mr. Langton not falling 
within the remit of the Panel as the appropriate route should be through Ward Councillors.  Mr. Langton 
expressed concern that he had not been contacted to meet with Ward Councillors in respect of issues that 
he had previously raised with the Panel.  Councillor Nkurunziza referred to (a) public meetings, drop-ins, 
resident events and MP surgeries that had taken place over the last two years that Mr. Langton had not 
taken the opportunity to attend, which had involved ward councillors who residents were able to contact 
directly should they wish to do so, (b) issues regarding other residents’ homes that had previously been 
raised by Mr. Langton, in respect of which neither he nor his fellow ward councillors had been contacted by 
the residents concerned, and (c) there being no record of Mr. Langton having made enquiries with 
Pendleton Together in relation to the repairs issues that he had previously raised.

Mr. Langton was asked to direct any future queries/issues to Pendleton Together and/or Ward Councillors 
as this was the appropriate route and would enable them to be investigated more expediently. 

RESOLVED: (1) THAT it be recommended to Pendleton Together that contact be made with all residents 
as soon as possible explaining the purpose of the correspondence they had received from NIBE and 
advising them that they are not required to submit their bank details.

(2) THAT assurance be sought from Pendleton Together regarding the intention for all
properties to be inspected and that clarification would be obtained as to whether issues identified during the 
inspections related to snagging issues or repairs.

(3) THAT it be recommended to Pendleton Together that they ensure that residents are
notified of any planned works to be undertaken at the earliest opportunity.

(4) THAT it be noted that the Panel asked Mr. Langton to direct any further queries/issues to
Pendleton Together and/or Ward Councillors.

Page 33



6

Appendix A

Response to recommendations made by the Growth & Prosperity Scrutiny Panel at 27th January meeting:

RESOLVED: (1) THAT it be recommended to Pendleton Together that contact be made with all residents 
as soon as possible explaining the purpose of the correspondence they had received from NIBE and 
advising them that they are not required to submit their bank details.

Pendleton Together contacted NIBE regarding this issue as soon as they were made aware to prevent any 
further information being sent to other blocks.   The NIBE servicing issue will feature in future 
communications, social media and direct contact with residents through the ongoing resident liaison 
process.  Pendleton Together only received two contacts from concerned residents regarding this issue but 
understand that others may well have received the communication hence the action above. 

(2) THAT assurance be sought from Pendleton Together regarding the intention for all 
properties to be inspected and that clarification would be obtained as to whether issues identified during the 
inspections related to snagging issues or repairs.

A programme of surveys had commenced to all flats.  The surveys will inform the detail of any fire safety 
works that are required in each property.  The balconies are not part of this survey and these are being 
surveyed as part of the external works to remove and replace the cladding.  The contractor carrying out the 
external works will action any remedial work identified and ensure this is compliant with current legislation 
and guidance. 

The surveys do not cover all the work carried out by Keepmoat.  Residents can report repairs to Pendleton 
Together in the normal way.   

(3) THAT it be recommended to Pendleton Together that they ensure that residents are 
notified of any planned works to be undertaken at the earliest opportunity.

Significant effort is made to ensure that every resident is kept up to date with what is going on (and when) 
and, most of all has a clear line of communication for requests, feedback and complaints – should there be 
any.
 
Pendleton Together have employed a dedicated Resident Liaison team to deliver support and advice to 
residents and the wider communities affected by the works, keeping them continually informed and up to 
date with progress and related issues. 

The resident liaison service provides a face to face enquiry service and a single information access point 
for all interested parties, enabling all queries relating to the works to be dealt with efficiently and 
consistently.

The approach includes but is not limited to regular newsletters, information posted on websites, and 
individual contact as appropriate with housing staff including face-to-face contact, telephone, e-mail, and 
written communication, and other events as required. 

All residents are notified of upcoming work in writing at various intervals and the team visit residents both 
prior to the works commencing in dwellings and during the works period.   Malus Court tenants were written 
to prior to survey work beginning in the corridors outside dwellings.

Page 34



GROWTH & PROSPERITY SCRUTINY PANEL – SEPTEMBER 2020
WORK PROGRAMME

Date (meetings to 
commence at 6.00pm)

Agenda Item(s)

26 October 2020 Homelessness & Housing Update

23 November 2020 Salford Crescent & University Masterplan – Partner Update

ABEYANCE LIST

 Impact of Covid-19 on Salford’s Local Plan and the GM Spatial Framework. 

 Impact of Covid-19 on Planning (including impact of UV returning to the Council).

 Impact of Covid-19 on the Clean Air Plan.

Portfolio of the Board: Membership (12 Members):

1. Physical regeneration.
2. Business investment and programmes.
3. Planning, housing and transport strategy and delivery.
4. Pendleton PFI.
5. Urban Vision.
6. Housing: (Citywest, Salix client and private).
7. Environmental sustainability.
8. Climate change.
9. To discharge the Council’s scrutiny functions as a lead local flood authority.
10.To scrutinise the Council’s business plan and budget in this functional area.

Councillor Brooks
Councillor Critchley
Councillor Dickman
Councillor R. Garrido
Councillor Hesling
Councillor Jolley
Councillor Lewis
Councillor Nkurunziza
Councillor Pevitt (VC)
Councillor Sharpe (C)
Councillor Ward
Councillor Weir

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 6



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Emergency Active Travel (EAT) Funds & Mayor's Cycling & Walking Challenge Fund (MCF) Scheme Prioritisation and Bidding Update.
	4 Bridgewater Canal, Salford Heritage Lottery Fund End of Project Update.
	5 Minutes of proceedings.
	Minutes GPSP 270120

	6 Work Programme.

